

STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSION ERS MEETING

TUESDAY, AUGUST 18, 2020 10:00 A.M.
DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES

MARSHALL MCBRIDE CHAIRMAN ATTORNEY ANNE LANGER DISTRICT

JAY CARMONA VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN COMMISSIONER TREASURER VANESSA STEPHENS CLERK-

ROLL CALL via zoom: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman Carmona, Commissioner Gilman, County Manager Austin Osborne, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis, Tourism Director Deny Dotson, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Jeff Nevin, Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis, Senior Planner Kathy Canfield, Senior Center Director Stacey York, Human Resources Director Jeanne Greene, Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki, Recorder Marney Hansen-Martinez, Communications Director Dave Ballard, Community Chest Director Erik Schoen

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman McBride led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for August 18, 2020.

County Manager Austin Osborne requested item 20 be continued to September 15, 2020. Move item 16 following item 17.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I move to approve the Agenda for August 18, 2020, with the changes requested, **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of the Minutes for July 21, 2020.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I move to approve the Minutes for July 21, 2020, **Action**: Approve, **Moved by**: Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by**: Commissioner Gilman, **Vote**: Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

5. CONSENT AGENDA:

- I. For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of \$912,292.23
- II. For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
- A. AECOM Design, A Professional Corp. Professional / 8985 S. Eastern Ave Ste 130 ~ Las Vegas, NV
- B. Atlas Land Development, LLC Contractor / 4363 S. Jumbo Way ~ Carson City, NV
- C. Jimmy's LLC Out of County / 3475 Ormsby Ln. ~ Washoe Valley, NV
- D. Road and Highway Builders, LLC Contractor / 950 E. Mustang Rd. ~ Sparks, NV
- **E.** Tenaska Power Services Co Out of County / 300 E. John Carpenter Freeway Ste 1100 ~ Irving, TX Public Comment: None

Motion: I move to approve today's Consent Agenda, **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action) None

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports Sheriff Antinoro:

- Long time Storey County resident, Jim Watson, passed away.
- With the start of school, be on the look-out for kids and school buses out and around. There
 will be extra enforcement in school zones.

Erik Schoen, Community Chest/Library Director:

- This is the last week for the summer program which has been very successful. With the protocol in place, there were no known cases of Covid 19.
- The library was used as another classroom. This will continue through the fall. People with a Storey County library card will be able to access all resources "virtually".
- Early childhood education will continue to be offered throughout the fall accommodating up to 18. Some part-time and some full time.
- Before and after school programs will be offered to elementary students, Monday through
 Thursday, and all day on Friday. Looking at staffing to provide the same programs for middleschool students after school. There are capacity issues, they will do the best they can.
- The tech-center in the library will be staffed by a teacher providing support for students accessing on-line school programs.

Deny Dotson, VCTC Director:

- The VCTC is very concerned with the shutdown and effects on revenue, especially from tourism tax and lodging. Mr. Dotson reviewed the figures (note: difficult to hear him via zoom). Some good news there.
- Hard decisions have been made regarding events there are concerns with the fall.
- A lot of resources will be going to marketing with radio and billboards.

Joe Curtis, Emergency Management Director:

- Only 5 new cases reported in the Quad County area with 22 recoveries.
- Since March 1, there have been 886 cases 732 recoveries. 139 still active, 15 deaths.
- In 5 months, there have been only 6 cases in Storey County.
- Reminder there is potential for exposure within 15 minutes at 6 feet distance.

- The Governor's order still stands for 50% of fire rating occupancy or 50 people total, whichever is less. Social distancing and masking are still in place.
- At the last test site on August 11, 140 tests were given. Two nurses, a representative from Carson City Health, 4 paid Storey County staff, and 3 Jeep Posse volunteers participated.
- Jeep Posse members have been a huge help at all test sites with set-up/take down of cones and tables and chairs, in decisions regarding flow of traffic and traffic control.
 They are always available, show up on time, and are committed to assist in the process. Many of the members have completed County-required MIMS, incident command training.
- The next test date is August 28 at the Lockwood Senior Center, 10am to 11am. Test results should be received in 7 to 10 days. People are lining up about one hour before.
- Tests must be conducted for the next 2 ½ years.
- Plans are being made for the "long haul" and for flu vaccinations, as well as Covid vaccinations when available.
- Equipment has been acquired for the test sites, with more that needs to be acquired to take care of the process the only outside assistance would be nurses to administer the tests.
- Since the beginning of Covid, Emergency Management and Community Relations have been working about 100% on Covid-related processes and issues.

Chairman McBride asked if (the County) is still required to test 2% of its population per month.

Mr. Curtis: We are far exceeding that.

Austin Osborne, County Manager:

- Working with NACO, the District Attorney, and our team on the mechanics of the program for the \$200,000 grant to be invested in our communities.
- A "town hall" open-air meeting will be held August 27 in Lockwood, 5pm to 6pm. This will take place north of the Truckee River Bridge in an area where people can drive in and stop. People are asked to wear facemasks.
- Working on a request from the last workshop to post the "capital improvement plan" on the link.
 It is already posted in the budget. A more "user friendly" version is being created.

Vice Chairman Carmona "applauds" the Town Hall meetings. This is an important time to communicate with the community.

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk:

- This year every active registered voter will receive a mail-in ballot. In addition, we will have the normal polling place. If a voter chooses to not use the mail-in ballot, they can come and vote on a machine as in the past.
- Everyone is encouraged to make sure voter registration is up-to-date. Contact the Clerk's Office with any questions.

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment) Vice Chairman Carmona:

- A lot of institutional knowledge has been lost with the passing of Jim Watson.
- **9. DISCUSSION /POSSIBLE ACTION:** Consideration and setting of date for a public hearing on the proposed amended service plan of the TRI GID.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis explained a requirement for amending the service plan is that the Board set a date for a public hearing. Notice must be published. The date being considered is September 15, 2020.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, move to set the 15th day of September 2020, 10:30 AM, as the date for a public hearing to consider possible approval of an amended service plan for the TRI GID, and authorize the clerk to publish notice of the hearing and to notify interested parties of the public hearing, **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of 2nd reading for General Home-Based Business License for Highland Arms, internet firearm sales. Applicants are Calvin, Pamela, and Jacob Willey, 2538 Cartwright Rd., Reno, NV 89521.

Sheriff Antinoro said applicants' background has been reviewed - they are pending Federal firearms license approval contingent on County granting business license. The business will primarily be internet and gun-show based. Applicants are connected with a tree service and a long-time gun shop in Reno. There is nothing prohibiting them from having this license. Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve the 2nd reading for General Home-Based Business License for Highland Arms, internet firearm sales. Applicants are Calvin, Pamela, and Jacob Willey, 2538 Cartwright Rd., Reno, NV 89521e, **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of 2nd reading for General Home-Based Business License for Silver State Firearms, 1399 Highland Spur, VC Highlands, NV 89521. Applicants are: David Cooley and Tony Midmore.

Sheriff Antinoro: Applicants are pending Federal Firearms License approval contingent on issuance of County's business license. Applicants will primarily be manufacturing custom firearms. Nothing in their background prohibits this license.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve the 2nd reading for General Home-Based Business License for Silver State Firearms, 1399 Highland Spur, VC Highlands, NV 89521. Applicants are: David Cooley and Tony Midmore, **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of 2nd reading for General Business License. Out of county Petroleum Distributor, Senergy Petroleum, 464 Andrews St, Ste. 1, North Las Vegas, NV 89081.

Sheriff Antinoro explained Senergy Petroleum will not have an office in Storey County, however they will provide goods and services through local distributors. Nothing was found to preclude them from this license.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve the 2nd reading for General Business License. Out of county Petroleum Distributor, Senergy Petroleum, 464 Andrews St, Ste. 1, North Las Vegas, NV

89081, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of 2nd reading for General Business License for Tahoe House Hotel & Bar. 162 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Paul Hoyle, Lark Lane Hospitality.

Sheriff Antinoro: Background has been completed on this applicant. Mr. Hoyle has a history in the hotel industry and will make a good addition to the community.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve 2nd reading for General Business License for Tahoe House Hotel & Bar. 162 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Paul Hoyle, Lark Lane Hospitality, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

14. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR BOARD

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of 2nd reading for Liquor License for Tahoe House Hotel & Bar. 162 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Paul Hoyle, Lark Lane Hospitality.

Sheriff Antinoro: There is nothing that would preclude Mr. Hoyle from holding a liquor license. He has 20+ years in the hospitality industry based on the reports.

Chairman McBride disclosed he holds a liquor license on C Street, not in proximity to this hotel. Voting on this issue one way or the other would have no affect on this license. Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve the 2nd reading for Liquor License for Tahoe House Hotel & Bar. 162 S C St., Virginia City, NV 89440. Applicant is Paul Hoyle, Lark Lane Hospitality, **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

17. RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of five-year contract with Lenslock for obtaining body cameras to replace the VieVu cameras for a cost of approximately \$20,000.00 per year.

Sheriff Antinoro: Some years ago, a contract with VieVu was entered into for body cameras mandated by the Legislature. VieVu has new owners. There have been issues in keeping the cameras "up and running" and looking at (VieVu), the price goes up significantly to renew the contract and up-grade cameras. Lenslock has a very reliable product, which (the Sheriff) has been testing the last few months, with a very good price. In discussion with the District Attorney's Office, it is probably cheaper to pay off the existing contract with VieVu due to their failure to uphold their end of the contract.

Chairman McBride: It was an "unfunded" mandate, right?

Sheriff Antinoro: At the time, there was an option to initiate a surcharge on the telephone system to

be used for payment of the cameras. The Commission opted not to do that. This is an option moving forward, but he doesn't think anyone wants any increases in taxes or surcharges.

Chairman McBride: Isn't this is a significant increase as opposed to VieVu?

Sheriff Antinoro: It is a significant increase, however it is the most cost effective contract. The company who bought VieVu was quite higher. As this is mandated across the country, there are not a lot of options. This is about the best price.

Deputy District Attorney Loomis: He has looked over the contract and the provisions for termination. The contract could be terminated for "breach" - but the breach standards are very vague. He advised the Sheriff to pay the termination fee, which isn't that high - establishing the breach would be harder. Among other items, the contract with Lenslock has significant limited liability which is not unusual. It is not the greatest, but a contract we have to live with.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve the 1st reading for the approval of the 1st reading for cancelling the VieVu camera system and replacing with LensLock camera system, **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona,

Commissioner Gilman asked the Sheriff how he evaluates the (current) camera system and its value to the community. Sometimes these things are not as effective as we would like.

Sheriff Antinoro: Agrees they are not as effective as they would like them to be. He said he testified against them at the Legislature because they really don't accomplish what was intended. They do provide insight in the event of ending up in court on a case. This was implemented because of allegations of police misconduct, shootings, or things of that nature - which have not been an issue in Storey County. It's not uncommon that a camera gets pulled off in a scuffle - you don't necessarily get a good image. The same if someone is being chased because of the way the camera bounces around. A camera in the patrol vehicle versus on the body would be his preference. It was found that the cameras being replaced were not very durable. These (new cameras) have a stronger mounting unit and controls keeping them on. They are not what they could be - we are stuck unless the Legislature changes something.

Commissioner Gilman commented they rarely "roll something back". In watching the news, they (cameras) do not seem to be very effective.

Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3)

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2020-021 request by the applicant Stericycle, Inc., to construct and operate a medical and other special waste incinerator facility. The project has the potential to provide generation of excess power, which is considered an "electric or gas power generating plant" which is also subject to a special use permit. The subject property is located at 1655 Milan Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, a portion of Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 005-111-73.

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from vote and discussion on this item as he holds a pecuniary interest in land that is the subject matter of this item.

Senior Planner Kathy Canfield: This application is for a Special Use Permit - a medical waste facility in the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. The project is in I-2, heavy industrial zoning, with an I-S overlay. Ms. Canfield described the building - all activities will take place within the building. Applicant is required to obtain permits from Nevada Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) who regulates emission standards and is permitting authority for air quality.

This project was discussed at the last Planning Commission meeting. Four items of correspondence opposing the project have been received. All items are on the website. The Planning Commission voted 5 to 1 for approval, with one recusal. Staff recommends approval.

Dominic Culotta, Executive Vice President and Chief Engineer of Stericycle introduced the Stericycle team and presented an overview of Stericycle's operations. The plant will be built on a 20-acre parcel on Milan Drive, zoned for heavy industrial with an I-S (Special Industrial Zone) overlay. Approximately 5 acres will be developed for the facility and parking. The rest will be a buffer zone to minimize impact on wildlife and neighbors. Operations will be contained within the 50,000 square foot facility.

Mr. Culotta reviewed the operation of the incinerators which are small compared to large municipal waste incinerators. Traffic impact will be small, with only 10 to 15 trailers expected per day. Construction will support many jobs. The facility will process certain types of medical waste designated for incineration as a best practice.

Mr. Culotta explained the focus on safety which includes enhanced training programs. There is a committee dedicated to health and safety. He addressed issues raised about the Stericycle facility in Utah, as well as in North Las Vegas. A letter has been submitted outlining legal reasons why this is not relevant to the law. A violation at North Salt Lake City, mentioned by those opposed to the facility in Storey County, occurred nine years ago and is the only citation for emission violation in the history of its operation. That facility remains in full operation, in compliance, with a permit through 2022. He discussed concerns with the proposed North Las Vegas facility. That application was withdrawn prior to approval or denial due to a lack of readily available access to water and other utilities.

Mr. Culotta reviewed reasons Stericycle decided on the TRI location for its new facility, including infrastructure, logistics, and the Master Plan. He presented a diagram showing the "state of the art" incineration process that will be installed including an air pollution abatement system. Concerns regarding effect on the environment have been heard. (Stericycle) is subject to stringent federal and state air regulations and follow a proven air pollution control process. The new incinerator will be subject to the most stringent emission standards in any incinerator category. Testing is required by the EPA - with samples and analysis submitted by a third party.

They have reached out to the American Wildhorse Campaign and will hold quarterly meetings throughout this process and believe they will make a positive contribution to the safety and well-being of wild horses.

Stericycle is committed to supporting these missions and participating with business owners of TRI. In addition, they service businesses in Storey, surrounding districts, and counties. This includes doctors, offices, labs, airports, retail, all branches of military, Federal, State, and local governments - as well as others. Mr. Culotta thanked the Board for the opportunity to present this item.

Chairman McBride: What were the negative findings by the Planning Commission in North Las Vegas that were leading to denial of (Stericycle's) SUP?

Dale Rich of Stericycle: The same type of rhetoric and documents being brought forward now may have influenced the decision process. There was not an actual hearing - there was no vote and the application was pulled based on lack of infrastructure.

Selin Hoboy: They were originally approved for the facility in the North Las Vegas situation. Two years later when obtaining a special use permit there was some political opposition in North Las Vegas. Similar information in terms of history at other facilities and the North Salt Lake situation was brought forward. As part of their package, that information was submitted as part of their concerns from a safety perspective. That is why they moved to deny the permit. At the same time, (Stericycle) looked at what was happening in that area and made the decision that the facility would not fit within their time-period and withdrew the application.

Chairman McBride: Special Use Permits are inherent to concern and criticism - that's why they're special use permits. Has Stericycle purchased the property where they plan on building? What is the estimated cost of the facility- how much will you be into it when built out?

Mr. Culotta: They have entered into a contract to purchase the land. Approximately \$40 million - \$14 million could be local. The planning phase and design are underway. When finalized, they can be more cost specific.

Chair McBride: Will the facility be equipped with new equipment or used from other facilities?

Mr. Culotta: The plan is for new equipment.

Mr. Rich: It will be all new with systems based on the latest technology advances.

Chair McBride: New equipment is usually cleaner and more efficient. Will rules be utilized that are put in place by the Treasury Department taking advantage of Storey County as an "opportunity zone"?

Ms. Hoboy responded they are looking at those opportunities - however they wanted to get through this process, then look at the next step and options.

Chair McBride: Will (Stericycle) be asking the Governor's Department of Economic Development for tax abatements?

Ms. Hoboy: They will be looking at what economic opportunities there are within the State. At this point, they have not planned for those - inaudible and plan on funding those themselves. Inaudible. With the potential equipment they are proposing as a "waste energy facility", there might be some options there.

Chair McBride: These questions are asked because we like to have businesses, especially high-tech, move into the industrial park. It doesn't appear (Stericycle) will have a big impact on services, but we like to make sure everyone is paying their fair share.

Vice Chairman Carmona asked how many employees would be working at the facility when it's "up and running".

Mr. Culotta: Approximately 30 employees when it's fully in operation. New technology is very automated. Some others will be coming and going.

Vice Chair Carmona asked Mr. Culotta to explain what would be coming out of the "stack" - would it be equal to emissions from a diesel truck?

Dale Rich: The facility is considered a minor source. Emissions would be fairly low and deminimus-compare it to about 10 trucks driving down the highway.

Vice Chair Carmona: If this is considered a low impact, what would be considered a high impact?

Mr. Rich: High impact would be a very large facility - power plants, manufacturing facilities with enormous emission potential. Our emissions are very low when compared to very large plants.

Vice Chair Carmona: The reality is this is a world where waste is generated that has to be brought down to the safest levels. There has to be place to get rid of this stuff. There will be real time monitoring of the stacks so if there is an issue or failure- what would be the procedure?

Mr. Rich: Emissions will be monitored based on permit conditions per Nevada and EPA regulations. "Site specific" operating parameters will be monitored continuously and recorded. There are "safety's" built in to the facility to stop the process of waste - a "lock-out" condition. Before operation begins, very extensive initial performance testing is done. The parameters established during testing must be complied with at all times. They will continuously "self-report" to NDEP - the regulatory agency. Reports are sent out detailing any deviations. Violations that would occur are reported by Stericycle.

Vice Chair Carmona assumes (Stericycle) would be working with Storey County Emergency Management and if there was an issue (the County) would be notified so the situation could be handled on this end.

Chair McBride asked how many Federal and State "oversight" agencies do you report to or are overseen by?

Ms. Hoboy: Approximately 10 to 15 agencies. There may be a permit for wastewater. We will need Federal and State OSHA permits, as well as permits from Department of Transportation, Nevada Bureau of Air Quality, and Title 5 Air Permit. We are preparing for any additional solid waste permits from the State and any other County permits as needed.

Public Comment:

Greg Hendricks, American Wild Horse Campaign: He is relaying appreciation to Stericycle Management Group for openness and willingness to discuss wild horse mitigation impact relating to this facility, its construction, and operation. Their openness is most appreciated. Discussions will continue on a quarterly basis. A commitment letter to continue mitigation discussions has been received. American Wild Horse Connection has been involved in rescue and discussion regarding that - we thank (Stericycle) for that. It's great to see a company look at situations prior to build so that appropriate actions and mitigation are built in - reducing impact on the wild horses.

Mathew Digesti, **Vice President-Government Affairs for Blockchains LLC:** Speaking in opposition to the Special Use Permit requested by Stericycle. A detailed opposition has been provided outlining legal reasons why the SUP does not meet standards for approval. At this time, they would like to focus on the issue of safety in Storey County. It is this (Board's) responsibility to protect the health and welfare of County residents, businesses, and thousands of employees working in close proximity to Stericycle's proposed bio-hazardous site.

Mr. Digesti reviewed other locations where Stericycle's operations were ultimately denied, including in Utah, Arizona, Oakland, and North Las Vegas. Contrary to Stericycle assertions, substantial negative findings were made and are in the staff report. This company has been all over the western United States looking to create a most dangerous, known bio-hazardous service. They have been appropriately challenged or denied everywhere they've been.

Mr. Digesti reviewed various negative issues with Stericyle -including, bio-hazardous pollution, environmental hazards, accidents, fines, and more. In addition, stock prices have declined for five years because the company is harmful and dishonest, among other things. There have been no presentations, no experts, no questions or findings of fact from the County about medical incineration technology or the harmful impact when an accident does happen.

Stericycle did admit to several accidents - the technology is not foolproof. This is not an acceptable risk - it was not to the City of North Las Vegas, Utah, Arizona, or California. What has Stericycle done to make Storey County an acceptable location?

Mr. Digesti feels the Commission does not have enough information regarding impacts. And even if they had enough information, they believe approving the SUP is not worth sacrificing Storey County's future.

Sam Toll: Echos what Mr. Digesti has said and expressed disapproval at the Planning Commission. He is skeptical of "self-reporting" - whether mining income for taxes, or emissions from this proposed facility. His "backyard" is as far away from this facility as you can get. By approving this type of business, the bar is set for other businesses to come in with hazardous materials. With almost a dozen of these types if businesses in the County, it sets a dangerous precedent. Mr. Toll agrees with what's happening at the industrial park and is encouraged by the diversity of businesses. This kind of business does not belong near Lockwood and Rainbow Bend. Mr. Toll explained how OSHA was turned away from investigating a dangerous machine at Tesla. He encouraged the Commissioners to reject this Special Use Permit.

Philip Hilton: Has there been any environmental study/studies? Getting environmental waste in and out of the area - has there been a study of traffic impacts? I-80 corridor is prone to accidents, especially in winter. What would the impact be if there was a spill on the highway?

Vice Chairman Carmona: Thinks they said about 15 trucks per day.

Chairman McBride: Yes, 10 to 15 trucks per day. (The County) has a hazmat team and we work with Washoe County. The Fire Department is properly trained and equipped to handle any hazmat accident that would occur - whether with this company or anyone else on the I-80 corridor.

Vice Chairman Carmona: Unless there are other questions or concerns that haven't been addressed that would cause putting this off for two weeks, he is confident with answers received. Accusations have been made which he has not seen much evidence in support. He feels they have met all requirements for the heavy industrial zone agreed to 10 years ago with the Master Plan amendment. He is ready to move forward unless there are other concerns raised that have not been addressed.

Chairman McBride: Has confidence in the Planning Commission and Planning staff. He does respect the one dissenting vote on the Commission. He does not, however, see anything that would deter going forward with this.

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:

This approval is for Special Use Permit 2020-021, a request by the applicant Stericycle, Inc., to construct and operate a medical and other special waste incinerator facility. The project has the potential to provide generation of excess power, which is considered an "electric or gas power generating plant" which is also subject to a special use permit. The subject property is located at 1655 Milan Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, a portion of Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 005-111-73.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.E of this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit.

The subject property is located within an existing industrial neighborhood in the McCarran area of Storey County. The zoning is based on the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance which identifies this property as I-2 Heavy Industrial. The proposed facility is defined as a "recycling facilities and operations involving use, recovery or residue of hazardous materials and/or wastes" and has an incinerator and has the potential to provide an "electric or gas power generating plant" and requires a Special Use Permit.

Granting of the Special Use Permit, with the conditions of approval listed in Section 4 of this report, will not under the circumstances of the particular case adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons/property in the neighborhood of the subject property. The project is expected to meet the safety and health requirements for the subject area. The use will also be subject to building and fire plan review in order to ensure compliance with federal, state and other codes.

The Special Use Permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal, state and county regulations.

The conditions under the Special Use Permit do not conflict with the minimum requirements in the 1999 Storey County Zoning Ordinance Sections 17.37 I-2 Heavy Industrial and 17.62 **Special Uses**.

Granting of the Special Use Permit will not, under the circumstances of the particular case, adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons working in the neighborhood or area of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject property.

Granting of the Special Use Permit would not be incompatible with or detrimental to the surrounding area.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings of Fact under Sesction 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Jay Carmona, move to approve of Special Use Permit 2020-21, to construct and operate a medical and other special waste incinerator facility. The project has the potential to provide generation of excess power, which is considered and electric or gas power generating plant which is also subject to a special use permit. The subject property is located at 1655 Milan Drive, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, a portion of Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 005-111-73, **Action:** Approve,

Moved by: Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Chairman McBride, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=2)

19. DISCUSSION /FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2020-026 is a request to allow for construction of a 110-foot high public service communication facility associated with the existing Storey County sewer treatment plant. The project includes a tower, equipment shelters and other associated equipment. The tower will be located on the property associated with the Storey County Wastewater Treatment Plant at 1001 Six Mile Canyon Road, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and being a portion of Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-311-04.

Senior Planner Kathy Canfield explained this Special Use Permit is for a tower to house public service equipment at the wastewater treatment plant. This will allow for wireless communication at the plant along with providing public service for that area of town that currently has limited coverage. The Planning Commission voted 6-0 for approval and is currently in review with the Historic Commission.

Commissioner Gilman said this is something that has been needed for the health and safety of those in the area.

Public Comment: None

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:

This approval is for Special Use Permit 2020-026 to allow for construction of a 110-foot high public service communication facility associated with the existing Storey County sewer treatment plant. The project includes a tower, equipment shelters and other associated equipment. The tower will be located on the property associated with the Storey County Wastewater Treatment Plant at 1001 Six Mile Canyon Road, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and being a portion of Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-311-04.

The Special Use Permit conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the Public Facilities designated area in which the subject property is located. A discussion supporting this finding for the Special Use Permit is provided in Section 2.D of this staff report and the contents thereof are cited in an approval of this Special Use Permit. The Special Use Permit complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the county master plan, the zoning ordinance and any other plan, program, map or ordinance adopted, or under consideration pursuant to the official notice by the county.

The proposal location, size, height, operations, and other significant features will be compatible with and will not cause substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses, or will perform a function or provide a service that is essential to the surrounding land uses, community, and neighborhood.

The Special Use Permit will result in no substantial or undue adverse effect on adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, public improvements, public sites or right-of-way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, and general welfare, either as they now exist or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions and policies of the county master plan, this title, and any other plans, program, map or ordinance adopted or under consideration pursuant to an official notice, by the county, or other governmental agency having jurisdiction to guide growth and development.

The proposed use in the proposed area will be adequately served by and will impose no undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities, or services provided by the county or other governmental agency having jurisdiction in the county.

The Special Use Permit, with the recommended conditions of approval, complies with the requirements of Chapters 17.03.150 - Special Use Permit, 17.12 - General Provisions, and 17.32 - Forestry Zone.

The proposed project is an accessory use to the existing Storey County sewage treatment plant, and therefore is consistent with the land acquisition requirements of Patent 27-2014-0006.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 3.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Jay Carmona, move to approve Special Use Permit 2020-026 to allow for construction of a 110-foot high public service communication facility associated with the existing Storey County sewer treatment plant. The project includes a tower, equipment shelters and other associated equipment. The tower will be located on the property associated with the Storey County Wastewater Treatment Plant at 1001 Six Mile Canyon Road, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada and being a portion of Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 001-311-04, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit Amendment 2017-020-A1-2020 by applicant Asia Union Electronic Chemicals - Reno, Inc. (AUECC). The applicant requests an amendment to Special Use Permit (SUP) Number 217-020 to modify the language associated with Conditions of Approval C, D, S, T and BB which relate to chemical and substance inventory, outdoor loading/unloading, water/fog deluge systems, bulk product loading/unloading, filling stations, training requirements, outdoor chemical storage, security footage storage and release reporting requirements. The subject property is located at 1400 Waltham Way, APN 004-091-81, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

Ms. Canfield explained this is an amendment to the previously issued Special Use Permit, modifying language in 5 of 33 conditions of approval in the original Special Use Permit. At the time of approval, AUECC was an unique business and was given a very detailed review resulting in very detailed conditions of approval. AUECC has since gone to other agencies with similar review processes - some of the (County's) very detailed conditions of approval do not allow the other agencies flexibility to put in their best practices. The recommendation is to modify language to make it more flexible for AUECC to meet requirements of other agencies and the County's SUP by taking out some very specific technical language. None of this changes any safety requirements of the project. Planning Commission voted 7-0 for approval.

Danielle Knight, Environmental Health and Safety Manager at AUECC, introduced several members of the AUECC team. Ms. Knight reviewed AUECC's operations - refining chemistry to a level of ultrapure chemicals used in semi-conductors to manufacture computer chips. The 2017 Special Use Permit was their first permit obtained. They are now ready for production and would like to revise that permit to insure it matches all other regulatory requirements and includes all stipulations needed for them to conduct business.

Ms. Knight explained changes needed to be made to the original SUP. Including the list of chemicals required to be on site for day to day operations that are not in the original SUP. Also, clarification of items to be moved by forklifts. Some highly technical items could be misconstrued to apply to all their

products. They are clarifying language to differentiate what technology applies to what chemicals. The changes have been assessed by a third-party consultant.

Commissioner Gilman: This is a wonderful company - they have invested millions to move forward in the process. It's very proper to be clarifying the SUP language.

Public Comment: None

Ms. Canfield read the Findings of Fact:

This approval is for Special Use Permit Amendment 2017-020-A1-2020 by applicant Asia Union Electronic Chemicals - Reno, Inc. (AUECC). The applicant requests an amendment to Special Use Permit (SUP) Number 217-020 to modify the language associated with Conditions of Approval C, D, S, T and BB which relate to chemical and substance inventory, outdoor loading/unloading, water/fog deluge systems, bulk product loading/unloading, filling stations, training requirements, outdoor chemical storage, security footage storage and release reporting requirements. The subject property is located at 1400 Waltham Way, APN 004-091-81, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada.

The Amended Special Use Permit 2017-020-A1-2020 conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the McCarran planning area in which the subject property is located.

Granting of the Amended Special Use Permit 2017-020-A1-2020 modifying Conditions of Approval C, D, S, T and BB, will not under the circumstances of the particular case adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons/property in the neighborhood of the subject property and will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or materially injurious to property improvements in the neighborhood or area of the subject property.

The Amended Special Use Permit 2017-020-A1-2020 modifying Conditions of Approval C, D, S, T and BB will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and it will comply with all federal, state and county regulations.

The conditions under the Amended Special Use Permit 2017-020-A1-2020 modifying Conditions of Approval C, D, S, T and BB do not conflict with the minimum requirements in the **Storey County Zoning Ordinance**.

Motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning Commission, the Findings of Fact under Section 5.A of this report, and other findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and in compliance with the conditions of approval, I, Jay Carmona, move to approve Special Use Permit Amendment 2017-020-A1-2020 to modify the language associated with Conditions of Approval C, D, S, T and BB which relate to chemical and substance inventory, outdoor loading/unloading, water/fog deluge systems, bulk product loading/unloading, filling stations, training requirements, outdoor chemical storage, security footage storage and release reporting requirements. The subject property is located at 1400 Waltham Way, APN 004-091-81, McCarran, Storey County, Nevada, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman Carmona, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

20. DISCUSSION/ FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Bill 118, Ordinance 20-307, text amendments to Storey County Code Title 17 Zoning Districts CR Commercial-Residential; C Commercial; R1 Single-Family; R2 Multi-Family Residential; E Estate; F Forestry; A Agriculture; I1 Light Industrial and I2 Heavy Industrial; NR Natural Resources and SPR Special Planning Review zones. Additions, modifications, elimination and clarifications including the listed land uses minimum

floor area, setbacks, minimum parcel area, distance between buildings and home enterprises are proposed.

Continued to September 15, 2020.

- **22**. **DISCUSSION/ FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:** Approval of business license second readings:
- A. Adelita's Tamales Food Truck / 917 Desert Breeze Way ~ Fernley, NV
- B. Denmark Commerce Park Owner 's Assoc. Non-Profit / 1485 La Briana Ave ~ Reno, NV
- C. G3 Solar, LLC Contractor / 272 W 200 N. #200 ~ Lindon, UT
- D. Hammond Homes and Construction LLC Contractor / 1780 Lattin Road ~ Fallon, NV
- E. Holder Construction Group LLC In-County Contractor / 2555 USA PKWY ~ McCarran, NV
- F. QA Group, LLC Out-of-County / 3400 E. Third Ave ~ Foster City, CA
- G. Iconic Concrete LLC Contractor / 2740 Beach River Dr ~ Reno, NV
- H. Two Rivers Demolition, Inc. Contractor/2620 Mercantile Dr. ~ Rancho Cordova, CA

County Manager Osborne: Community Development recommends approval of Items A through H.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Jay Carmona, motion to approve the Second Reading of Business Licenses A. through H., **Action:** Approve, **Moved by:** Vice Chairman Carmona, **Seconded by:** Commissioner Gilman, **Vote:** Motion carried by unanimous vote, **(Summary:** Yes=3

23. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action) None

24.	ADJOURNMENT OF ALL	ACTIVE AND	RECESSED	BOARDS O	ON THE A	AGENDA
The	meeting was adjourned by	the Chair at 1	12:01 PM			

By:	-	